
PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR VOTING MEETING 
TUESDAY, MARCH 23, 2010 
PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR VOTING MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
held on TUESDAY, MARCH 23, 2010 in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at CITY HALL 
201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 
 
  

  CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Kuykendall called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m. 
 

        INTRODUCTIONS   
 
 Councilman Lamerson recognized past Council members Bob Bell and Bob Luzius, 

and Chamber Executive Director Dave Maurer.  
 

 INVOCATION: Pastor Amy Ryland, Church of Nazarene 
 
 Pastor Wil Ryland gave the invocation. 
 

  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Councilman Lamerson 
 
 Councilman Lamerson led the Council and audience in the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 
 

  ROLL CALL:    
 
 PRESENT:       ABSENT: 
   

Mayor Kuykendall      None 
Councilman Blair   
Councilman Hanna    
Councilman Lamerson  
Councilwoman Linn 
Councilwoman Lopas  
Councilwoman Suttles  

 
 SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS 

    
 Mr. Norwood said that the City was a big supporter of Prescott Area Leadership 

and he wanted to remind everyone that their annual Man, Woman and Youth 
Leaders of the Year Banquet was going to be held on April 7, 2010. He noted 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 2 
 

that Councilwoman Tammy Linn had been chosen as Woman of the Year, and 
he encouraged everyone to support the program. 

 
 Councilwoman Suttles wished Mr. Norwood and Shaun Rydell happy birthdays. 
 
I. PROCLAMATION 
 
 A. April 2010 as Water Awareness Month 
 
  See below (After II-A) 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
A. Martha Wolfinger re removal of Spanish version of Census Banner. 
    
 Ms. Wolfinger, Prescott, read a statement regarding the recent comments 

made by some members of the Prescott City Council re the Spanish-
language census banner. She said that those comments reminded her of 
Antonio Gilberto Yescas who at the age of 21 was killed in the line of duty 
in the Vietnam War. It also reminded her of the law of the land, that people 
should respond to the census and answer questions, regardless of 
citizenship, and also of the City’s core belief to “be nice.” She said that it 
has reminded her of her father and the children in the community, and she 
would want the children to learn from their leaders that one of the beauties 
of the country was its diversity. 

 
 Councilman Hanna said that he had voiced his opinion because of 

comments he received from people that put him in office. He said that 
when he was running (for office) he made his feelings known—that he did 
not believe that illegals should be there. He said that this issue has 
nothing to do with the Hispanic people; the majority of his friends growing 
up were Hispanic. He speaks Spanish and is married to a Hispanic 
woman. He said that he had nothing but praise and love for the people 
and Spanish. He said that they were opposed because of the proposition 
passed in 2006 that designated English as the official language of Arizona 
and 74% of Arizonans passed that proposition. 

    
 Ms. Wolfinger said that was good to hear. She said that she took much 

time and care to write her statement and it was done for her hometown 
and her love for her Dad.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 3 
 
I. PROCLAMATIONS 
 
 A. April 2010 as Water Awareness Month 

    
 Councilwoman Suttles invited Shaun Rydell forward as she read the 

proclamation proclaiming April 2010 as Water Awareness Month. 
Ms. Rydell thanked her and encouraged the public to continue supporting 
the water conservation efforts. She said that she brought a calendar of 
events with her and placed on them on the back table. She thanked the 
public for their water conservation and the Council for their funding the 
program. 

 
III. PRESENTATIONS 
  
 A. Introduction of new businesses. 
      
  Susan Cohen of the Prescott Chamber of Commerce introduced the new 

businesses, who then each gave some information on themselves. 
      
  RelyLocal – Tommy and Angie Reed, www.relylocal.com
     

Thompson Conan Law Firm, Bob Burbick, 899-5765,                     
    bverbic@tcmmg.com. 

     
Prescott Film Festival, Helen Stephenson, www.prescottfilmfestival.com

    
  Rubicon Outdoors, Matt Brown, www.rubiconoutdoors.com. 
 
 B. Presentation by R Wall re plans for mural at Acker Park. 
     
  Mr. Wall said that they were doing two massive mural projects this spring, 

one at Acker Park and the other at the Miller Valley Elementary School. 
He then introduced Maggie Dwyer who reviewed the plans for the mural at 
Acker Park. She said that they would kick it off on April 3 and they plan to 
have it completed within two months. They said that their theme was the 
flora and fauna that inhabit the park as well as the history of the park. 

    
  Councilwoman Linn said that she was glad to meet with them and 

suggested that when they had their kick-off activities that they have a box 
available so anyone who wants to defray the costs could do so personally. 

    
  Councilman Lamerson clarified that the Minutes of the March 9, 2010 

Workshop, page 6, should read differently; he did not suggest they bond 
for open space. He asked that those be corrected. 

 
 

http://www.relylocal.com/
mailto:bverbic@tcmmg.com
http://www.prescottfilmfestival.com/
http://www.rubiconoutdoors.com/


Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 4 
 
 
IV.   REGULAR AGENDA 
 

A. Adoption of Ordinance No. 4721-1018 – An ordinance of the Mayor and 
Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, superseding 
Ordinance No. 4665-0908 during the pending of the Legislative 
Moratorium or further Legislative actions; and amending Title II, Chapter 
2-1, and Title III, Chapter 3-14 regarding the imposition of water and 
sewer development fees; and declaring an emergency. 

    
 Mr. McConnell said that since the last meeting they provided a 

supplemental agenda memo that summarized the proposed changes. He 
said that it would roll back the impact fees, specifically water and 
wastewater fees to amounts that were in effect on June 29, 2009; and it 
would reinstate the previous system of sewer buy-in fees. He said that the 
ordinance did include an emergency clause. 

 
 Mr. McConnell said that there were some questions raised at last week’s 

meeting regarding the refund letters and after discussing the issue further 
staff was recommending that they be sent to the building permit holder, 
with a copy to the property owner of record at that time. Another issue 
raised was the sales tax liability, which may or may not have been created 
by a refund so they would send along that information.  

 
 The last issue raised last week was the ability to continue with the CPI and 

after further research they found that since it was quite low and would 
have very little impact, and there was conflicting wording, staff was 
recommending that it not be put into place. 

    
 Bob Luzius, Prescott, said that if he was on the Council he would object. 

He said that the impact fees should have gone into effect in January of 
2009 but a majority of the Council, at that time, delayed their 
implementation which had created the problem. He said that the councils 
were not doing the job they were being paid to do. 

    
 Councilman Lamerson asked for clarification of the “roll back” of the 

impact fees. Mr. McConnell said that the roll back pertained to the amount 
of the impact fees. There would still be impact fees for water system and 
water resource impacts. They would eliminate, or defer the sewer system 
impact fees and call them buy-in fees which were calculated differently. All 
three of those fees would be applicable, but the amounts of the fees would 
be changed. 

   
 COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 

4721-1018 WITH THE EMERGENCY CLAUSE; SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMAN HANNA; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 5 
 

 
B. Award bid to Digital Payment Technologies for three (with an option for 

four) Kiosks in an amount not to exceed $75,000.00.     
    
  Ms. Horton said that there was an existing $2 parking fee at the lakes that 

had been handled on the honor system in the past, which had not worked 
very well. She said that the kiosks would print out a receipt that would be 
placed on the dash and the volunteer rangers would be doing the 
enforcement. They would be trained and certified by the Police 
Department. 

 
  She said that staff discussed the issue of additional fees for use of a credit 

card and although they had not heard back from the bank they were 
recommending that the fees for payment by a card be adjusted to reflect 
the charge accordingly. 

 
  Ms. Horton said that they currently had three AARP employees working in 

the payment booths. In the last six months the City collected $624 for fees 
through the honor system. Last week she reported that the employees, 
over one weekend, brought in $747 and this past weekend they collected 
$1001 in three days. 

 
  She said that the funding was set at $75,000. Three machines would be 

$52,730 which would allow for the purchase of a fourth machine, if Council 
desired. She said that staff had suggested that the fourth kiosk be placed 
at the Sundog Trailhead parking lot and that the funds from that kiosk be 
dedicated back to maintenance of the trail. She said that each machine 
came with a one year warranty, but they were able to purchase an 
additional two-year warranty. If they were to purchase all four kiosks and 
the additional two-year warranty for each, the total would be $74,188. 

     
  Councilwoman Linn said that she wanted it made clear that the parking 

fees had always been in place. She asked if there was a possibility of 
paying for the annual pass at the kiosk itself. She said that they bought a 
year pass for $45 from the Prescott Forest and paid an additional $5 for 
an additional vehicle, but it was a hassle having to go to their office. She 
said that she would like to see it made as easy as possible for people to 
purchase the annual pass. She added that she had received comments 
from citizens that it was difficult to locate information on the passes on the 
City’s website. 

 
  Tim Legler with Parks and Recreation said that they were working on the 

website to improve its ease of use, and as far as the annual passes went, 
it was a computer program so they may be able to accommodate that 
process. 

  



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 6 
 
  Councilwoman Suttles asked if they would have the opportunity to pick up 

further warranty at the end of the three years if the were to purchase the 
extended warranty. Ms. Horton replied that they would. She said that they 
would like to be able to post on the parks and recreation website the 
running total of what has been collected at the Peavine Trailhead so users 
could watch it grow, and they could help be a voice in where the 
maintenance should go. 

 
  Councilwoman Suttles asked if they had any way to keep track of numbers 

using the Peavine Trail. Ms. Horton said that the only counter they have 
was at the Sundog End of the trail. 

 
  Councilwoman Suttles asked where the revenue collected at the lake 

kiosks went. Ms. Horton said that it went back into the General Fund 
which funds the parks, recreation and library. The purchase of the kiosks 
themselves was coming out of the capital improvement plan. 

    
  Councilman Blair said that he was glad to see it taking place, but they 

needed to clarify that part of the reason for having a user’s fee was to help 
offset the costs of the use, which included employees being drawn out of 
the general fund. At some point there needed to be a rationale of what 
percentage of the user’s fee would go to help offset the cost of that 
employee. 

   
  Councilman Lamerson said that in his opinion it was a mistake to expect 

people to voluntarily pay their taxes that they were assigned to pay to 
begin with. All they were doing was not increasing the fee, but saying that 
they were looking for a mechanism in which to collect the tax assigned to 
help the operating costs for the facilities. 

  
  Councilwoman Lopas asked if there was a way to handle the annual pass 

through the City’s website. Mr. Woodfill said that they could look into that, 
but at the least they could offer it at the drive through. 

    
  Mayor Kuykendall said that it was “beat up on Council week” and many of 

the e-mails he received said they would never pay, but they would find 
another way to get on the trail. Ms. Horton added that they had seen a 
dramatic increase in the sale of annual passes. 

    
  Mr. Luzius asked for clarification of the costs. Ms. Horton reviewed that 

the four kiosks would cost the $63,000 and extending the warranty would 
be an additional $8,000, leaving around $4,000 for infrastructure costs. 

 
  Mr. Luzius clarified that although comments were made that the fees had 

always been in place, they have not been there forever; they were initiated 
several years ago. 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 7 
 
    
  Tom Slaback, Prescott, asked for clarification of whether it was a use fee 

or a parking fee. Ms. Horton said that it was a parking fee. He said that he 
never drives to the trail, but uses it often and asked if he would be 
expected to pay the fee. Ms. Horton said that if he was not parking at the 
trailhead lot he would not be required to pay the parking fee. 

   
 COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE 

OF FOUR KIOSKS, PLUS THE EXTENDED TWO-YEAR WARRANTY, 
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $75,000; SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMAN BLAIR; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
C. Consideration of an agreement with Prescott Area Arts and Humanities 

Council in the amount of $15,000.00. 
   

Ms. Bristol noted that she had brought the budgeted allocations in bed tax 
funds for the Prescott Area Arts and Humanities Council (PAAHC) to them 
the prior week. They were to award grants to organizations and events 
that happen throughout the year. During that discussion they included the 
fact that the bed tax fund had not been collecting at the rate they had 
hoped. They did not estimate enough money at the end of the fiscal year 
to be able to pay the revised budgeted amounts. The staff recommended 
what should be done with the balance of the allocations. 

 
 The recommendation has a carry forward of about $22,500 going into 

fiscal year 2011 to provide some money for the bed tax fund. 
     

Councilwoman Suttles asked if the City of Prescott was paying $12,500 
every year for Prescott Creeks. Ms. Bristol said that they were. 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if in times like these it was possible to 
spread it out or if the City committed was to that amount.  

    
Mr. Norwood answered that they tried to do that a couple of years ago by 
giving them half the amount.  It got the Creeks in a bind and they had to 
go back and restore the amount. They were committed to doing several 
projects and had done it and done a good job.   
 
Councilwoman Suttles asked for examples of the projects they had done. 
Mr. Norwood said that the main project they had done was the Watson 
Woods Riparian Area. They had done master planning in that area and   
water projects associated with Watson Woods.   

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that she did not remember it being that kind of 
dollar amount when it was brought to the budget meeting. 

 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 8 
 

Mayor Kuykendall said that he and Councilman Lamerson met with 
Prescott Creeks and that this was part of an ongoing match they had with 
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) which moved from year to 
year. It had a lot to do with making sure the water at Watson Lake did not 
reach the levels where EPA came down on the City. Councilman 
Lamerson said that it was a filtering system and monitoring system that 
ensured that water in the lake meets water quality standards for Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) for surface recharge when 
the water was let out. Otherwise they compromised their assured water. 

    
Councilwoman Lopas said that she thought it was about $800,000 in 
ADEQ grants that Prescott Creeks had brought in. 

 
 Ann Marie, Prescott Creeks, said that the match on that was toward an 

$800,000 grant. The overall project of Watson Wood for the five years was 
$1.4 million that they brought in to do the wok on the effort. There was 
also the current $300,000 toward watershed planning that covered a lot of 
the storm water costs.   

 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if the project would be finished in the next 
two years. Ann Marie said that it was an ongoing process, but the 
matching grant would be gone. Councilwoman Lopas said that they were 
getting a big bang for their buck for $12,500 per year. 
  
Councilwoman Suttles asked if they would be looking at the Prescott 
Frontier Days Rodeo at another time.  Ms. Bristol said yes. Councilwoman 
Suttles then asked if they were looking at the City’s dollars in the City’s 
accounts and what they are doing with it. 
  
Mr. Norwood said that they pay those out based on the previous year’s 
actual allocations. When they were in the budget workshop they would 
have a much more conservative approach so they were not putting those 
groups in a bind.   

    
Councilman Blair said that he supported Prescott Creeks and thought that 
they were very important. He thought that a lot of people did not recognize 
that all of the City’s sewer systems were laid in creek beds. There are 
issues during storms where the system gets overloaded. Sometimes there 
were sewage spills. The process and ideas of how they were going 
forward with ADEQ and the downstream users was important to make 
sure that there was clean water in the lakes.     

    
Councilman Lamerson noted that understanding that the motion they 
made that day was limited to $15,000 for the arts, he wanted to make sure 
that the motion did not preclude the $12,500 that they had dedicated to 
the Creeks. He did not understand why it was not wrapped together. 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 9 
 

 
Councilman Blair asked if they could make a motion to do all three of 
them. Councilman Lamerson said that he did not see a reason why not to 
acknowledge the fact that the $12,500 they had committed to was not 
allocated. Councilman Blair said that the recommendation was on the 
paper. 
 
Councilwoman Linn said that it said $42,500. Councilman Blair said that if 
they signed off on it there was no reason to bring either of the others back 
because they were under $20,000. Mr. Kidd said that the agenda item was 
just for the $15,000 as it was proposed. The only thing that they could 
make a motion on was on that item. 
 
Councilman Lamerson noted that they now had public record that they 
could administratively take care of the issue and not have to hear about it 
again in Council. Mr. Norwood said that it would be done that way unless 
they wanted to see the next two before them.   
    
Councilwoman Lopas noted that she was gone the previous week and she 
was very concerned with the allocation for Prescott Frontier Days. They 
were just getting going and she had not had a chance to talk with them to 
see how things were going. She noted that it was a severe cut from what 
they normally got. Since they brought in so many dollars to the 
community, they needed to make sure that they were taking care of the 
groups appropriately.  She wanted to talk to them in the next week or so. 
She did not want to jeopardize the City’s biggest season. Mr. Norwood 
said that he could set that up for her. 
    
Elisabeth Ruffner, 1403 Barranca Drive, Prescott, Co-chair of the PAAHC 
sub grants committee, reported the previous week that out of the 
$50,000+ they were granted last year from the bed tax, which was there 
because the citizens voted for it, out of the 8 reporting groups that had 
already had their activities $4.9 million had been realized in Prescott, 
including the bed tax money. Almost 1,000 people came to the cowboy 
poets from outside the country. If those people were not doing destination 
marketing, she could not imagine how it could have been done any better. 
Very little staff was involved in any of the organizations.   
 
They would be happy with whatever the Council would pass on from the 
money that the hotels and motels had collected from visitors. They were 
willing and able to continue the work. She hoped that as the City 
recovered they did not forget that the PAAHC had done this for seven 
years and they got better every year. It was money that they could not 
spend in any better way. 

    



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 10 
 

Mayor Kuykendall asked if the last bed tax report was from January. He 
noted that there had been a downward run for the past couple of years. If 
they did see any leveling he asked Mr. Norwood if he could go back to 
either of the groups.  Mr. Norwood said that they could do that. The past 
couple of months had shown some stabilization but there was no 
guarantee that the trend would continue. 

    
Bob Luzius, 237 South Arizona Avenue, Prescott said that he though it 
was a travesty the amount of money the City was awarding these groups. 
He noted that Bill Geist said that the City needed to be spending more 
money to bring people into Prescott.  He reminded them that the previous 
Council had the opportunity to vote in 4% bed tax and it was reduced to 
3%. If it had been 4%, they would have collected around $650,000 and 
everyone would have received what they were supposed to have 
received. 

    
Councilman Hanna said that he agreed with him on that. The past Council 
did not pass the 4%. He said that they could not spend something they did 
not have. He would especially like to give more to the rodeo. He supported 
all of the groups, but if they do not have it they cannot spend it. 

 
Mr. Luzius said that he recommend that the City put it on their agenda to 
increase the bed tax to 4% at least. Mayor Kuykendall said that he should 
be made aware that the public was the one that made that decision, not 
the Council. If it was taken to the public, they could see where it went. It 
took a public vote to increase the bed tax.   
 
Mr. Luzius said that he begged to differ and that they increased the tax 1% 
without a public vote just two years ago. Mayor Kuykendall apologized to 
him and said that he was wrong. Mr. Luzius said that he did not think he 
was wrong. 
 
Gary Kidd said that it did require a vote. Mr. Luzius asked the City 
Attorney, through the Mayor, why it happened a year and a half ago.  
 
Mayor Kuykendall said that the public voted for 3% bed tax. It was 
increased from 2% to 3% with the support of the Lodging Association.  
About 600 rooms were in support of the increase. It was voted on by the 
public as the original bed tax was voted on by the public for the 2%.  Part 
of the verbiage was that it would be used by Parks and Recreation and 
tourism promotion. Mr. Luzius said that he disagreed with him and that he 
would do some more homework and would come back and correct him.  
Mayor Kuykendall said that he knew that he was the type of guy who 
would admit it. 

    



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 11 
 

R Wall, Hillside and Lincoln Street wanted the Council to know that he had 
been in Prescott for 15 years.  He had been part of the arts the entire time 
he had been there. Toward the end of the 90’s, when there was no money 
in the arts account, they fought for the money to bring arts to the point of 
about $50,000. That was ten years that they fought to see that the arts 
had proper funding. They still find themselves shy of Prescott Valley. 
Prescott was the most underfunded arts community in the State that he 
knew of, yet they were supposed to be a great art town.   
 
When the entire list was tallied up it was $42,500, which was the price of a 
street lamp or a fire plug. There had to be money in another fund, like 
streets or police which drew from a quality of life fund that the arts should 
be drawing from. He implored them that cutting the arts funds, rodeo funds 
and creek funds may be short term to their best interest. In a few years if 
the City increased bed tax, the arts groups would still have to start all over 
in 2000.         
 
The Mural Mice work for the lowest budget possible painting murals 
because they like to do it and they are proud of their town. It would take 
some help from the City to make good art. If the City kept cutting back 
they would not have anything to bring people here for. He asked the 
Council to please help them help the town. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that his words were well taken. The Council was 
trying to finish off the budget year. The budget was prepared by the 
previous Council, and the estimated income was prepared a year ago. 
They have the responsibility of finishing up the year with a balanced 
budget. They were taking what money was left and trying to allocate it.  
Everyone on the Council wanted to do what was right for the community. 

     
Jim Lawrence said that he believed that Mr. Luzius and Mayor Kuykendall 
were both correct. The people voted on the amount and the Council 
provided the wording and the amount that the people voted on. Mayor 
Kuykendall said that was exactly right, the Council took the message 
forward and asked the people to vote for 3% or let it remain at 2%.   
    
Carlo Pastore, 2128 Sante Fe Springs, Prescott, President of Prescott 
Frontier Days, said that everyone was right and that they could only do 
what they could do with a finite amount of money. He thought that there 
was an issue with some of the recipients of the arts. There were about 
3,000 businesses in the Quad-City area. They had 63 sponsors last year 
and 84 the year before and 94 the year before that.  At that moment, they 
had 26. In the downtown area, on the square, they had 2 businesses that 
were sponsors and 2 more that gave them an ad. They were the greatest 
recipients of the 27,000 people who came for the 8 days of rodeo. They 
needed to step up to the plate, to some extent. It was not the Council’s 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 12 
 

responsibility to take care of them as they were a 1 million dollar 
operation. They got a little bit of the bed tax, which was great, but there 
was a finite responsibility that went out to a lot of people. They were a 
non-profit and are all volunteers and the people needed to realize that. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that they all agreed with him and they were in it 
together.  

   
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MOVED TO APPROVE AN AGREEMENT 
WITH PRESCOTT AREA ARTS AND HUMANITIES COUNCIL IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $15,000.00; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  

 
D. Adoption of Resolution No. 4009-1039 – A resolution of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, repealing all 
previous resolutions with regard to Council policy on membership on 
boards, commissions and committees and adopting a new Council policy 
on membership on boards, commissions and committees; and declaring 
an emergency. 

    
Councilwoman Linn thanked Councilman Lamerson, Councilman Hanna, Liz 
Burke and Gary Kidd for their hard work.  

   
Councilwoman Suttles said that she thought that everything was fine and that 
she would like to make the motion. 

 
Councilman Blair said that he thought that they were using the emergency 
clause because there were board and commissions that did not have people 
on them and the spaces need to be filled. Councilwoman Linn said yes and 
that that their goal was to turn it around and have applications available to 
the public. They would like to get everyone on board. Terms had come up on 
several boards and commissions and they put a temporary extension of 60 
days on those people. 
 
Mr. Kidd noted that she was correct and in order for the resolution to be 
immediately effective and in order to start the process and bring the 
applications current in a timely manner, they added the emergency clause. 
  
Councilman Blair said that the public seemed to have an attitude that they 
were trying to skate around something by attaching an emergency clause. 
Mr. Kidd said that the urgency was to take care of current board situations 
and get moving forward in an organized and positive way as quickly as 
possible. 

        
Councilwoman Linn said that they went over the application and found some 
additions that they put in place. Many of the boards and commissions did not 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 13 
 

even have applications on hand or were not meeting. They wanted to 
organize them and make sure that they were in compliance with State 
Statute. In many, they will allow regional members to apply, but there were 
some boards that they felt should only be made up of taxpayers in Prescott. 
The other thing was that the committee would look at every application and 
decide and interview the people for the positions. They would put notices in 
the newspaper and anyone could apply. That committee would recommend 
a chairman and vice chairman. The final decisions would be made by the 
Council. She said that it had not been looked at in years; they just wanted to 
bring some organization to it.  
    
Councilwoman Lopas noted that Meals on Wheels was not on the list, it was 
a committee that she served on. Councilwoman Linn said that there were 
some committees that she served on, but not as an official liaison.  
Councilwoman Lopas said that she was requested to serve on that 
committee.  Councilwoman Linn said that they would add it to the list. 
  
Mayor Kuykendall said that he received an e-mail questioning why the 
Council was going to make the chair and vice chair appointment. They 
thought that should be made from within the committee.  In the past it rolled 
over and became a “my turn” and he thought that was what the committee 
was trying to get away from. Councilwoman Linn said that was correct. There 
were some commissions where people were appointed as Chairman before 
they were even reappointed to the commission. The intent was that the 
committee will have the opportunity to get insight from the current committee 
members, if they wished. 
    
Elisabeth Ruffner,1403 Barranca Drive, Prescott had a number of calls. She 
had a strong feeling that the quality of the committee depends on who was 
appointed. They must also be directed as to the work that they should do.  
She wrote, with another group of people, the first Preservation Ordinance for 
the community. They were very tight in their function and knew exactly what 
the Ordinance said and what their work was. They were careful to be 
absolutely punctilious in everything they do.  She said that it seemed that if a 
committee was well appointed of people who are qualified, the Council 
needed to be sure they had written the qualifications of each committee they 
wanted to have serving them, the committees should be free to choose their 
leaders. That way, the citizens would have more ability to serve them in a 
more democratic way. 
 
Mayor Kuykendall said that was almost verbatim what the Council was 
talking about doing. He thanked her for her service. 
       
Mr. Luzius, 237 South Arizona Avenue, felt that the chair and vice chair of 
the boards and commissions should be appointed by their peers. They were 
the ones that know best how they operate and what their strong points and 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 14 
 

weak points are. Many of these committees and commission that the City 
had do not see a Council person. He thought that “not knowing anything 
about a committee” was a poor reason to exclude a committee, especially to 
Ms. Linn, since she said that she did all of the research. 
 
Councilwoman Linn said that they had to rely on City staff since she was 
newly elected. The staff had no recollection of what three of the committees 
did. That interconnect was not there. She apologized, because she did the 
research, but they were not aware of any work those committees had done. 
They had to rely on the best information they could from the staff because 
they are the glue that holds all of the councils together. Mr. Luzius said that it 
was still a poor way to make a decision 
    
Councilman Lamerson noted that elections had consequences. The fact was 
that the public had the opportunity to change who sat on the Council, who in 
turn chooses who sits on their board and commissions. Those are a 
reflection of the Council. They serve at the Council’s pleasure. It was thought 
by the committee to recommend to the Council that it made sense that the 
chair and vice chair be selected by the Council, who was elected by the 
public at large. That was no reflection of those who are selected to serve. 
    
Councilman Hanna said that when they go to research something and there 
is nothing there, they cannot gain knowledge of whatever it was.  There was 
nothing that they could find on those committees and it was not for lack of 
research.   
    
COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 
NO. 4009-1039; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN BY 
COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSES UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
E. Appointment of members to the Council Appointment Committee. 

 
    Ms. Burke said that it was an official appointment of the three members who 

previously offered to serve in that capacity.It would be Councilwoman 
Suttles, Councilman Blair and Councilman Hanna. They would be the three 
members who would interview the new applicants and make 
recommendations to the Council. 

 
    Mayor Kuykendall said that as a part of the process, the Mayor would select 

the Chair and he selected Councilwoman Suttles. 
 

COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MOVED TO APPOINT COUNCILWOMAN 
SUTTLES (CHAIRMAN), COUNCILMAN BLAIR AND HANNA TO THE 
COUNCIL APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE; SECONDED BY 
COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

  



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 15 
 

F.  Approval of Settlement Agreement in Raber vs. City of Prescott. 
    

Mr. Kidd said that it was a proposed settlement by the legal department 
referencing a lawsuit filed against the City of Prescott in 2008, regarding a 
number of City water lines that ran through Dr. Raber’s property. When they 
purchased the property they found existing water lines but they believed 
there was a federal Army Corp of Engineers easement that was terminable 
at will. That was mistaken; the easement was on another piece of property.  
 
The City did have a perpetual easement from the Army Corps of Engineers 
and it required a lot of research to find that. When they did the research on 
the property, they discovered some missing parts of that easement. There 
were some other easements in 1941 where water lines were located outside 
of granted easements. As a result, Public Works spent a lot of time working 
with the legal department. They located the lines and went to mediation with 
Dr. Raber and his attorney.  
 
There was a proposed settlement by the mediator which was much higher 
than the one they worked out. The settlement resolved the property issue 
involving main City water lines. It also worked for Dr. Raber so he can use 
his property the way that does not have to locate the water lines. If he did 
have to locate a residence there, there would be a provision where he could 
pay out of his own pocket to locate the water lines.  
   
Councilwoman Suttles asked Mr. Kidd to cover the question about Lorraine 
Drive. Mr. Kidd answered that because the main water line went across 
Dr. Raber’s property, there was a center part of the property where they had 
proposed a certain size residence. They could not locate that residence 
without having to move the City water main line. The City of Prescott had 
Lorraine Drive which was not used and would be subject to abandonment. It 
would go to him if it were abandoned.  

   
Mayor Kuykendall asked when the action was initiated  Mr. Kidd said that it 
was in 2008. The claim would have been about six months before that time 
period. Mayor Kuykendall asked if that Council was bringing that action to an 
end. Mr. Kidd said that the original claim was $3 million.   
    
Mr. Luzius, 237 South Arizona Avenue said that Lorraine Drive had already 
been abandoned, the portion of it between Willow Creek Road and Robin.   

  
COUNCILMAN BLAIR MOVED TO APPROVE THE SETTLEMENT 
AGREEMENT IN RABER VS. CITY OF PRESCOTT; SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 

 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 16 
 

G.  Approval of Property Purchase Agreement for the purchase of real property 
from the Stone Living Trust in the Thumb Butte Estates. 
    
Mr. Kidd said that he prepared the staff memo and sales agreement. That 
sales agreement extended an American Land Title Association (ALTA) policy 
and warranty deed so they ensured good title so that they do not have the 
types of issues that they had in the last case. They will take care of all of the 
easement issues before they close. It would be a 30-60 day closing.  
 
He met with Mr. Stone on Friday and went over the contract. Mr. Stone had 
one issue about condemnation, which was taken out. There was also a 
change in the format; the purchase value of the property was agreed by the 
Council to be $220,000. Mr. Stone was asking $240,000. He believed the 
record was clear on the value of property. An appraisal was just an opinion of 
value. They discussed that it would be fair to Mr. Stone to recognize that he 
was giving up $8,000 of value. So the contract was written with the $8,000 
value being donated by Mr. Stone to the City. They would also do an 
environmental Phase I audit as part of the property purchase, so there were 
no environmental issues. 
    
Councilman Blair asked if they needed an emergency clause. He also asked 
if there was any stipulation that they should put it back on the market 
immediately if they decided not to use the property. Mr. Kidd said that the 
provision was not in the contract. There was a provision that it was being 
purchased just for public use, which was whatever the Council determines it 
to be. There were no restrictions on the sale of the property but there were 
State law procedures on how they would have to advertise the property for 
sale. They made sure that they got an appraisal which they used as a 
reserve price.   
 
Councilman Blair said that his point was that the City had been sitting on the 
Sixth Street property forever. When they determined they were not going to 
use that property for a fire station, they should have put it on the market. The 
City of Prescott was not in the business to own real property for no value to 
the community. Mr. Kidd said that they could do that and the Council 
controlled the property.  
    
Councilwoman Suttles asked if the $8,000 donation would be a tax break for 
the seller. She asked Mr. Kidd to explain a donation. Mr. Kidd said yes and 
that they had done that with other transactions. If it was donated to the City, it 
became a deduction; it could also be a loss. Councilwoman asked if the 
$8,000 was offered by the City or did he request it. 
 
Mayor Kuykendall answered that he and his wife were searching for a 
method. With interest, and taxes, they anticipated they had about $220,000 
invested. When they reached the $212,000 they had a loss. This would help 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 17 
 

them with their tax situation. A capital loss can only be charged against a 
capital gain. Their accountant suggested this. 
    
Mr. Luzius, 237 South Arizona Avenue said that they were setting a bad 
precedent by paying more than the appraise value.  
    
Mayor Kuykendall noted that his house value went down in value in the last 
few years. The option was condemnation, which the Council agreed not to 
do.  
    
Councilman Lamerson said that they looked at several sites and it was not 
just about condemnation. They did evaluations on which would cost so much 
to develop the infrastructure was necessary to protect 6500 residential units. 
It kept coming back to the one piece of property, because of elevation and 
development issues. There seemed to be an exceedingly large disparity 
between the cost of the piece of property on the bottom line after 
development compared to the others. It seemed that the City was coming 
way ahead on this piece of property as compared to the others. 
    
Mr. Norwood said that he was correct. They looked at numerous sites, there 
were unwilling sellers, topography and hydrology did not go hand in hand, 
and some options were too costly. Councilman Lamerson asked what value 
he put on securing the fire flow for 6500 residential units.  
    
Mr. Kidd noted that when they were dealing with value, appraised value was 
one factor the other factors were public need and degree of public need and 
public necessity. Those are the things that the Council had to determine.  
  
 
Ray Dextreits, 2225 Skyline Drive, said that he lived next to the proposed 
tank and by approving this purchase the Council would cause harm to 42 
households in the Thumb Butte Estates. The proposed location of the 100’ 
diameter tank was at the entrance of their subdivision and would be in view 
to all who enter. To say that it would not be an eyesore because it would be 
partially buried was like saying that an 800 pound gorilla sitting there would 
not be noticed. The proposed tank barely fit that house lot. The City was 
asking the neighbors to accept this thorn in their side even though they 
received no benefit from it. The tank was seven times larger than the existing 
tank, based on the projected future demand. The future demand was from 
the Hassayampa Village community. Since they would receive the greatest 
benefit from the tank, he asked why they did not locate it there. There were 
remote locations in that community that met the hydraulic requirements 
which would have minimum impact on residents of that community; 
compared to the impact it would have on the residents of the Thumb Butte 
Estates community.  
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 18 
 

The Prescott City Council had the authority and responsibility to those who 
elected them to task the City Engineers to propose a suitable location that 
minimized the impact on residential households.  
    
Councilwoman Linn said that she thought that it covered 6,500 households 
that were currently there, for water needs in case of fire.  Mr. Norwood said 
that she was correct. 
    
Mr. Dextreits noted that the future demand that the City was planning for was 
primarily in the Hassayampa Village. Mr. Norwood said that it was not just 
taking care of future demand. There were fire flow issues and storage 
requirement issues. Councilwoman Lopas said that those lots were already 
allocated water; the City had to serve them. 
   
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MOVED TO APPROVE THE PROPERTY 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY 
FROM THE STONE LIVING TRUST IN THE THUMB BUTTE ESTATES; 
SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED 6-1 WITH 
COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES CASTING THE DISSENTING VOTE. 
 

H. Approval of the Minutes of the Prescott City Council Study Session of 
March 2, 2010; the Workshop of March 9, 2010; the Regular Voting 
Meeting of March 9, 2010; and the Study Session of March 16, 2010. 

       
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF 
THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION OF MARCH 2, 2010; 
THE WORKSHOP OF MARCH 9, 2010; THE REGULAR VOTING  16, 
2010; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

 I. Recess into Executive Session. 
 

COUNCILWOMAN LOPAS ASKED TO RESCHEDULE THE EXECUTIVE 
SESSION DUE TO TIME CONSTRAINTS.  

 
V. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  

A.  Discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public 
body in order to consider its position and instruct its representatives 
regarding negotiations for the purchase, sale or lease of real property, 
pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(7). 

 
  1. Potential open space acquisitions. 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – March 23, 2010                                                           Page 19 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
     
 There being no further business to be discussed, the Regular Voting Meeting of 

the Prescott City Council held on March 23, 2010, adjourned at 5:18 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the Regular Voting Meeting of the City Council of the City of Prescott, Arizona held on 
the 23rd day of March, 2010. I further certify the meeting was duly called and held and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this ____ day of ___________________, 2010. 
 
 AFFIX 
       CITY SEAL  
       ________________________________  

      ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


